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1 APPEARANCES 1 ROBERT LEONBERGER, being sworn, testified as follows: i
2 FORUSW LOCAL 11-6:
3 IANINE M. MARTIN 2 DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MS. MARTIN:
Attorney at Law 3 Q. Would you state your name, please.
4 HAMMOND, SHINNERS, TURCOTTE, LARREW 4
AND YOUNG, P. C. 4 A.  Robert Leonberger. %
5 7730 Carondelet Avenue, Suite 200 ' 2
S Louis, MO 63105 5 Q. And you are aware that you've been noticed
6 (314)727-1015 6 for deposition in connection with two separate complaints
7 FOR LACLEDE GAS COMPANY (VIA TELEPHCNE): e
8 RICK ZUCKER 7 filed by USW Lecal 11-6; is that correct?
Atterney at Law ] - A Yes.
s Lacede Gas Company 9 Q. And one of them is 2006-0313, which
10 S;. L03uis£ 31503253101 10 involves the Grunsky bag method, and the other is
11 G 11 2006-0390, which involves the automated meter reading
FOR THE OFFICE OF THE PUBLIC COUNSEL: 12 program, correct? §
12
MARC POSTON 13 A, Yes.
13 Senior Public Counsel :
P.0. Box 2230 14 Q. Mr. Leonberger, who is your employer?
14 200 Madison Street, Suite 650 15 A.  Missouri Public Service Commission.
Jeffi City, MO 65102-2230 -
15 (557:?;?[1‘_4%5 16 Q. And how long have you been with that
16 FOR THE STAFF OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION: 17 employer?
o RO%E?,L?E‘E:;T 18 A, Got to calculate this. 25 years.
18 JENNIFER HEINTZ 19 Q. What is your present position?
Assistant General Counsel .
19 P.0. Bax 350 20 A.  I'mthe assistant manager of the gas safety
200 Madison Street . .
20 Jefferson City, MO 65102 21 engineering area.
(573)751-3234 22 Q. What are your duties in that position? :
21 N b
25 SIGNATURE INSTRUCTIONS: 23 A.  OQverseeing the gas safety program of the
23 Presentment waived; signature requested. 24 Commission. We Ingpact all the gas utilities in the
%g B(H:ggzgzdsg gﬂl?a'?‘_s" 25 state, the -- all the regulated utilities and the
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1 municipal utllities for gas safety. 1 breakup of the states.
2 Q. And have you had those same duties the 2 Q. And so the pecple you meet with are your
3 entire time that you've been employed by the PSC? 3 counterparts in other states?
4 A, T've had the supervisor's job since about 4 A, Yes, as well as the federal office of the
5 1991, 5 Pipeline Safety people.
b Q. Okay. 6 Q. Okay. And those people work for the
7 A, Before that, I was an inspector with the 7 Federal Government?
8 department. 8 A.  Right.
g Q. Were you always in gas safety? 9 Q. Now, I wanted to ask you a couple of
10 A.  Yes, Tve always been in the gas safety 10 questions about gas incident reporting. The PSC, does the
11  area. 11 PSC receive reports of gas incidents from gas utilities in
12 Q. Do you belong to any professional 12 the state of Missouri?
i3 organizations whose focus are issues of gas distribution | 13 A.  Yes.
14 or safety? ) 14 Q. And how does that -- what is the -- is
15 A.  I'm a member of the National Association of 15  there a regulation in the State Code of Regulations that
16 Corrosion Engineers. 16 requires that sort of reporting?
17 Q. And whatis that? 17 A.  Itrequires a notification to the Staff of
18 A.  It's a -- NACE is the acronym. It'sa 18  certain incidents.
19 naticnal — it's an international association of corrosicn 19 Q. What are the incidents that need to be
20 technicians and engineers that corrosion, one of the 20 reported?
21 aspacts is the corresion of pipelines. 21 A, There's if it involves injury requiring
22 Q. Do you have annual meetings or -- 22 hospitalization, if it involves a death, if it involves
23 A.  There's annual meetings, but I haven't 23 property damage more than $10,000.
24 attended cre of those for a while. 24 Q. Greater than 10,000. So if there is a gas
25 Q. Okay. Any other professional organizations 25 incident that does not cause any property damage, say for
Page 6 Page 8 [
1 related to gas distribution or safety? 1 example there's a gas leak and the utility finds it, fixes
2 A. T was -- associations, the National 2 the problem, nobody’s hurt, that's not something that
3 Asscciation of Pipeline Safety Representatives. 3 would come to the attention of the PSC?
4 Q. National Association of? 4 A.  Often we have calls that we consider a
5 A.  Pipeline Safety Representatives. It's an 5 courtesy call, if the media is involved or something like
6 organization of state pipeline safety managers like 6 that, but it's not required that they calk unless it meets
7 myself. 7 one of those criteria. There's another criteria, if it
8 Q. Does that have a short thing? 8 doesn't meet any of those specific criteria I just gave
g A.  NAPSR. 9 you, that if it is significant, guote, in the eyes of the
10 Q. NAPSR. Does that association hold any 10 operator, that you call.
11 meetings? 11 Q. Okay.
12 A, Yes, there's regional meetings and national 12 A, But a lot of times we'll get calls from
13  meetings. 13 different operators because there's media involved. They
14 Q. Do you attend those at ali? 14 just want us to know about it.
15 A, Yes, 15 Q. Okay.
16 Q. How often? 16 A.  That's not an incident report. It doesn't
17 A. 1attend basically all the regicnal 17 meet the definition of incident.
18 meetings annually and all the naticnal meetings annually. | 18 Q. When incident reports are filed on the
19 Q. And what regicnal meeting is that? What | 19 ones -- on the incidents that meet the qualifications
20 region is covered by the region? 20 you've just described to me, are those maintained by the
21 A.  The NAPSR is broken up into regions the 21 psc?
22 same as the Federal Pipeline Safety regions. They have 22 A, Anincident report will be something
23 different -- the Federal Pipeline Safety Organization has 23  that -- a Staff incident report is a report that the Staff
24 different regions, and Missouri's in the central region. 24 would file with the Commission. We would open a docket or
25 129 states in the central region. 5o we just mirror their 25 open a case number, and we would do an investigation and
mwwwmwmwwmwmwwwwmwaw
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1 then we would write a formal case, or write a formal 1 Q. Would that be mostly just to verify that it .
2 report 2  wasn't the fault or on the utility property side?
3 Q. Okay. 3 A, Normally we would talk to the fire
4 A, And it would be filed here or filed with 4 department, the police department, the investigators :
5 the Commission, ves. 5 there, the fire marshals, to find out what happened. I 2
6 Q. And so those files are open to the public; 6 it's clear, all their investigations say it was clearly
7 s that correct? 7 this particular piece broke and there's no other
8 A Yes. 8 indications of something, we may not do a formal
S MR. FRANSON: No. 9 investigation.
10 THE WITNESS: The Staff incident reports 10 Q. So smaller incidents that happen thatdont |
11 would be. 11 involve injury or death, and by that ¥ mean smaller gas §
12 MR. FRANSON: Hold on. The Staff incident 12 leaks that are found and captured by the gas company,
13 report, but that's different than the entire file. 13 regardless of whether it's on the customer side or the §
14 BY MS. MARTIN: 14 uiility side property or equipment, those things are not .
15 Q. Okay. So there may be certain parts of the i5 officially reported to the PSC? g
16 file that are not available to the public? 16 A.  Only in maybe overall leaks repaired for
17 A, Correct. The Staff incident report is 17 that year, just a composite number of leaks repaired for ‘
18 available to the public ,and the filings would be -- 18 the year, something like that, but individually, no.
19 filings, responses and things like that would be in that 19 Q. Okay. So do you get data on overall leaks
20 case file. 20 per year from the utilities?
21 Q. If — when the cause -- let me strike that. 21 A, There's an annual report, has leaks
22 When the PSC Staff is notified of a -- say 22 repaired during the year. ;
23 asignificant property damage over $10,000 as a result of | 23 Q. And when does the annual report get filed?
24 a gas situation, does it make a difference in terms of the | 24 A.  February. We get that in February, then we :
25  investigation whether the leak or the -- I'm sorry --the |25 send it to -- we review it, then send it on to the Federal
Page 10 . Page 12 .
1 problem was on, say, a pipeline that's owned by the gas 1 Office of Pipeline Safety. E
2 utility or on a furhace or a gas appliance that was in the 2 Q. And each separate gas utility files its own
3 customer's home? 3 separate annual report?
4 A.  The ncetification, we would want them to 4 A, Yes. )
5 notify us - notify us so we would have that knowledge, 5 Q. What other sorts of statistics or
6 but the actual jurisdiction that we would have would be on 6 information is contained in the annual report?
7 piping that would be owned under the regulatory authority 7 A.  Miles of pipe, number of service lines,
B of the Commission or if equipment that the company had B types of materials for each service line, lost and
9 malfuncticned or if actions by one of the operating 9 unaccounted-for gas.
10 personnel caused that. 10 Q. Isthe reportiong?
11 Q. Okay. 11 A, It's two pages, three pages.
12 A.  Even though it may not be on the specific 12 Q. When you get the report, does it indicate :
13 pipeline owned by the company. 13 how the leaks were detected, or is it just an overall
14 Q. Okay. Well, so if there's a problem on the 14  leaks per year, the number? ) )
15 customer side, say a pipe in their home that maybe led to 15 A.  There's a breakdown of -- there's four or
16 their stove burst and there was an incident, would that be | 16 five different categories for the leak, what caused the
17 investigated? 17 leak.
18 A.  Possibly, but if it was clear that we found 8  Q Do you know if the leaks that are reported
19 that the fire department said it was clearly a failure of 19 are leaks of a certain magnitude? I know in the
20 an inside pipe and it had nothing to do with the actions 20 regulations they talk about a Class 1, Class 2, Class 3.
21 of the company or the failure of the company facilities, 21 Does the breakdown that you're talking about separate them
22 we may nct do a formai investigation. 22 out that way?
23 Q. Okay. Would you do an informal 23 A, No.
24 investigation? 24 Q. It'sjustall leaks?
25 A, We would find out what happened, yes. 25 A, Right.
e B e T o e R
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1 Q. Nomatter how minor? 1 MS. MARTIN: Right. That's fine. P
2 A Right. 2 MR. FRANSON: S0 as leng as we can agree [
3 Q. Okay. 3 can have a continuing objection?
4 A, Well, I would say that there are a few 4 MS. MARTIN: Yes. i
5 above-ground small like fizz leaks on 2 meter set piping 5 BY MS5. MARTIN: §
6 that would be considered 2 Class 4 leak that wouldnt 5 Q. That'sright. And I should tell you, Iam
7 be -- necessarily be required to be in that report. 7 only wanting your knowledge. I'm not actuaily going to
g Q. So Class 4 is the most minor? 8 quote you for what comes in there, I'm just sort of
9 A, Right. 9 leading us up to the Grunsky bag set of questions.
10 Q. Do the regulations require, to your 10 So the process or timing of meter
11 krowledge, the utilities, the gas utilities to perform gas 11 change-outs is something that's addressed by the statute?
12 safety inspections on the customer side at any particufar 12 A. It's addressed by the statute, and In
13 times? 13 Ladlede's case and & number of the other gas utilities
14 A.  When the gas is physically turned on. 14 it's addressed by a waiver to the statute, as far as how
15 Q. And that's what we call turn-ons, right? 15 the meter Is changed out. ‘ i
16 A, Right. When the gas is physically turned 16 Q. Okay. Why don't we -- in connection with E
17 on, the company is required -- company cr municipality fs 17 that, let me just give you -- I guess we'll call it
18 required to go inside and do an inspection. 18 Exhibit 1, Union Exhibit 1. g
19 Q. And with a home sale inspection situation, 19 {UNION EXHIBIT NO. 1 WAS MARKED FOR i
20 is that another time when a gas safety inspection is done? | 20 IDENTIFICATION BY THE REPORTER.) _
21 A.  It's not required then. 21 BY MS. MARTIN:
22 Q. It's not required? 22 Q. Fve handed you what is Plaintiff or Union
23 A.  Right. 23 Exhibit No. 1, and it's a Report and Order in Case
24 Q. Do you know if most of the utilities do it 24 No. G0O-95-320; is that correct?
25 here in Missouri? 25 A, Yes. ;
Page 14 Page 16 %
1 A, Idon't believa any of them do that, except i Q. Do you recall this case?
2 laclede. 2 A Yes.
3 Q. lLaclede does them; is that right? 3 Q. And do you recall whether or not this case
4 A.  Right. 4 involved issues dealing with the changing of meters? :
5 Q. Do the gas utilities provide any statistics 5 You know, let me rephrase that, What1
6 to the PSC that discuss or address whether or not gas 6 understand this case to be on -~ just correct me if I'm
7 hazards are discovered or potential hazards are discovered 7 wrong. I'm not actually going to ask you any questions
8 during these gas safety inspections that are done at 8 aboutit. Butvery--
9  turn-on or haome sale inspections? 9 MR. FRANSON: I'm sorry. Ican't—I'm
10 A.  No. 10 going to have to cbject. A question correct me if I'm
11 Q. Do the regulations address the issue of the 11 wrong would suggest you're about to make a statement. I
12 changing cut of gas meters by the gas vtility? 12 would ask that you ask the witness questions. I mean, if
13" A.  Just the reguirement to do changes, T mean, 13 you want to interpret it and then ask him questions,
14 the change in the meter, 14 that's fine, but just kind of leaving him hanging, correct
15 Q. That's discussed in the regulations? 15 you if he's wrong on a legal matter, I'm sorry, I'm going
16 A. Tt's discussed in the statute, not the 16 to have to object to that. More the form af the question
17 regulation. 17 than anything.
i8 MR. FRANSON: I need to just put a 18 MS. MARTIN: Yeah. And that's fine. Let
19 continuing chjection, and I should have done this a litile 19 me finish my question, and we'll see if that fixes the
20 earlier. Certainly 1 have no objection to Mr. Leonberger 20 problem
21 testifying about his knowledge of the regulations, but 21 BY MS. MARTIN:
22 certzinly the regulations and statutes covering these 22 Q. In this case Laclede requested a variance
23 subjects do speak for themselves, and if he inadvertently 23 from the method it was using to select meters to be
24 |eaves something out, that would be the final authority on 24 changed; is that correct?
25 the subject. 25 A Yes.
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1 Q. Okay. And at the time -- the time before 1 A.  MGEis using the Grunsky bag method, has
2 this Case 95-320 was heard, was Laclede using the method 2 for 10, 12 years.
3 that was set forth in the statute to change -- to select 3 Q. Okay. Does the -- do you know of 2ny
4 meters for change? 4 statute or regulation that requires a certain type of
5 A, Yes. 5 process for changing gas meters --
6 Q. Okay. And in this case we're talking about 6 A, No.
7 here, 95-320, Laclede was requesting a vartance that would 7 Q. - here in Missouri?
8 allow it to use a statistical meter sampling methed to 8 S0 when the utilities want to use, for
9 select meters for replacement; is that correct? 9 example, the Grunsky method, do they need to come to the
10 A Yes. 10 PSC to request approval?
11 Q. Until recently, I think really until 11 A. N,
12 earlier this year, is this still the method that Laclede 12 Q. Do they -- let's start with MGE. When they
13  had been using, do you know? 13 decided to start using the Grunsky method, did they come
14 A, They've been using it since '95, as far as 14 to the PSC and at least alert the PSC they were going to
15 1know. 15 start using this or start using it in conjunction with
16 Q. And still they're using this method? 16 other methods?
17 A Yes. 17 MR. FRANSON: I'm going to think about an
18 Q. Okay. That's actually all I had on that, 18 objection. We have to be real careful talking about cther
19 solet's move on. Are you familiar with a process for 19 utilities. Unless that infarmation is public,
20 changing gas meters that's referred to as the Grunsky bag 20 Mr. Leonberger cannot answer that.
21 method or Grunsky method? 21 MS. MARTIN: Okay.
22 A, I'm familiar with it, yes. 22 MR. FRANSON: So as leng as it's public, I
23 @.  And which terminology do you prefer for 23 will have no ohjections to him answering the quastion, but
24 that, Grunsky bag or just Grunsky method? 24 I remind everyone here that it must be public information
25 A. Doesn't make any difference. 25 about cther utilifies or otherwise he cannot answer.
Page 18 Page 20
i Q. Okay. I'm afraid I'll use it 1 BY MS. MARTIN:
2 interchangeably. If I say Grunsky method, I mean the 2 Q. Would you know if that's public
3 Grunsky bag method, and vice versa. 3 information?
4 Other than Laclede, are there gas utilities 4 A. It wouldn't be public information because
5 in Missouri that you know of that are using the Grunsky 5 itwasn't part of a case,
6 bag method? 6 Q. Okay. So et me ask it then in regard to
7 A, Yes. 7 Laclede, let me ask you this: When did you first find out
8 Q. Isthis process a process for -- can you 8 that Laclede was going to be using the Grunsky method?
9 describe to me how the Grunsky method works, if you know? | ¢ A.  TI'm not real sure.
10 I mean, what's done just — 0 Q. Okay. Did you have any -- did the PSC do
11 A.  It's a method te change the meter without 11 any investigation or did they have any discussion -- let
12 having to turn the flow of-gas off. Do you want 12 me ask it that way -- prior to the time the Union filed
13 specifically how the step through -- 13 its complaint about Laclede’s use of the Grunsky method?
14 Q. No, you don't need to describe it that 14 A, We had discussions, yes.
15 much. Prior to the implementation or the use of the 15 Q. Soyou knew they were going to be using the
16 Grunsky method, would the gas have to be turned off when a | 16 Grunsky method before the Union filed its compiaint?
17 utility changed a gas meter? 17 A Yes.
18 A.  There are other methods besides a Grunsky 18 Q. Was any sort of investigation done of
19 method that can be used, but prior to the use of the 19 Laclede's decision to start using the Grunsky bag in some
20 Grunsky method, the utilities I'm aware of were using the 20 situations?
21 traditional change-out. 21 A.  I'wasaware of the pilot programs they had
22 Q. So here in Missouri, you don't know of 22 done,
23 . other utilities that were using another sort of method for 23 Q. Iguess I'm just trying to avoid getting
24 changing the gas meter that allowed them to keep the gas 24 into the problem where I'm asking you about anything
25 on prior to the Grunsky? 25 that's private or not public knowledge, but just tell me

R S e T e P e G I T R R e e b e

5 (Pages 17 to Zb)

-

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

www.midwestlitigation.com

Phone: 1.800.280.DEP0O(3376) -

Fax: 314.644.1334



ROBERT LEONBERGER 7/6/2006

Page 21 Page 23 g
1 if that's where I'm going. 1 and had not had a problem. i)
2 At the time Laclede let you know they were 2 MR. FRANSON: Can we stop and go off the %
3 going to start doing it, did the Commission perform any 3 record? %
4 sort of studies or investigations on its own about whether 4 (AN OFF-THE-RECORD DISCUSSION WAS HELD.) ?3?
5 or not the Grunsky method was a safe and effective method 5 BY MS. MA.RTIN: %
& of changing meters? 6 Q. Ithink we were just at -- you guys knew 55
7 A.  Aformal investigation? 7 that for the past ten years MGE had been doing it without %
8 Q. Yes. 8 a problem. I think that was our last answer. Do you know §
9 A. No. 9 whether or not MGE and Laclede performed the Grunsky ;
10 Q. Was there an informal investigation? 1¢  method in the same fashion? §
11 A, Like I said before, we were aware of the 11 MR. FRANSON: I think we’re going down the é
12 pilot programs they were deing, what they had done with 12 same problem because you're asking other -- you're asking E
13 those pilot programs. 13 information about other companies that I -- I'm -- I guess E
14 Q. 5o youwould say it's more a matter of 14 I need to hear Mr. Leonberger say his knowledge of that %
15 Laclede letting you know what was going on, keeping you 15 subject would be public information. Otherwise, ¥'m going §
16 abreast of it? 16 to have a probiem with him answering the specifics about f
17 A Right. 17 what he knows ahout MGE.
18 Q. And let me just ask you this, too, because 18  BY MS. MARTIN: %
19 you use the word formal investigation, and I think I know 19 Q. Allright. g
20  what you mean, but is there a -- are there any, like, 20 A. My answer is going to be that, from my §
21 written provisions in the regulations or something that 21 knowledge, they both use the process + procedure spelled §
22 make a distinction between a formal investigation or 22 outin Gronsky's — 5
23 informal investigation? 23 Q. Literature? E
24 A. By formal or informal, I mean, we had 24 A.  Literature, yes. iz
25 discussions with them about what they were going to do. 25 Q. Okay. Sothe way I understand it, when the §
Page 22 Page 24 §
1 We did not have a formal written-out memo-type 1 Grunsky method is used and these meters are changed %
2 investigation, no. 2 without turning off the gas, the utility does not need to §
3 Q. So there wouldn't be any written records or 3 do agas safety inspection' on the customer side; is that
4 memos that the PSC Staff had put together about the 4 correct?
5 Grunsky method? 5 A. The gas is not turned off, so it would nat
6 A.  Correct. & be required to be physically turned back on; therefore, an
7 Q. Do you know, do you guys maintain any 7 inside inspection would not be required.
8 statistics from either Laclede that are public or MGE that 8 Q. Okay. The other question I have about
9 are public that describe or discuss the use of the Grunsky 9 that, and I don't know if this is something you know
10  method in practice? 10 about, but when you're using the Grunsky method in :
11 A. Do we require them to give it to us? 11 accordance with the Grunsky literature, is the gas §
12 Q. I'm wondering if you maintain any records 12 regulator pressure pressure-checked after that meter
13 of those. 13 change?
14 A No. 14 A, I'm not sure I understand.
15 Q, Atthe time Laclede discussed with the 15 Q. Yeah. Is there a gas regulator on the §
16 Staff its decision to start using Grunsky and that it was 16 meters that are changed? :
17 going to be performing this pilot project, did the Staff 17 A, Not ail of them. §
18 have any concerns about the safety of this method of meter | 18 Q. Okay. On the ones that do have a gas
19 change? 19 regulator, do you know if that pressure is normally
20 A, No, 20 checked after a meter change when the Grunsky method is
21 Q. Does that remain true today after it's been 21 notused?
22 used for a while? 22 A, T'm nct aware.
23 A. My no answer is based upon the fact that we 23 Q. Okay. If the Grunsky method eliminates the
24 had known that for ten years or 5o that MGE had performed 24 need to turn on the gas, therefore, it eliminates the need
25 that and done thousands, maybe tens of thousands of these 25 for these customer-side gas safety inspections; is that
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1 correct? 1 PSC's responses to the Union's Data Request in Case 0313,
2 A.  If the gas is not physically turned on, it 2 which is the Grunsky bag case?
3 would not be -- inspection would not be required. 3 A, Yes.
4 Q. Allright. Do you know if there's 4 Q. Okay. And are you the individual that
5 anything, any other sort of inspection on the customer 5 provided the information in the responses?
& side that replaces that that's performed by the utilities? | 6 A Yes. '
7 A.  Replaces? 7 Q. And that's your signature at the bottom of
g Q. The gas safety inspection that would be g8 page 2?
9 done at turn-on, if there’s fewer turn-ons when this 9 A Yes.
10 Grunsky method is being used. Are there other 10 Q. The response to Data Request 1 indicates
11 inspections, I guess is what I'm asking you, on the 11 that in January of 2006 the Staff inquired to Laclede
12 customer side other than at turn-on? 12 about information that Laclede had about the Grunsky
13 A. Laclede does the home sale inspection. 13 method. What precipitated that inquiry?
14 That's not a regulated part of what we do -- 14 A.  General information, just what they were —
15 Q. Right. 15 what exactly they were deing.
16 A. == but Laclede does that home sale 16 Q. Waell, was January '06 close to the time
17 inspection. 17 when you had first learned that they would be implementing
18 Q. Yeah. And I think what I was just trying 18 the Grunsky method?
19 to getis an answer to that. I mean, do the regulatiens | 19 A, 1think we -- I knew about it before then.
20 require any other sort of inspection on the customer side| 20 Q- And had any discussion been held before
21 other than at turn-on? And I think -- 21 then with Laclede and Staff?
22 A.  No. 22 A, TIdont know when, but I belleve we -- we
23 Q. --you've answered that no. 23 talked about they were going to do a pilot program, but 1
24 Okay. And that's the only customer-side 24 really had -- ncthing formal, no.
25 gas safety inspection that the regulations discuss; is 25 Q. Are the documents that are attached to the
Page 26 Page 28
1 that correct? 1 DRs, which I'll read your description of them, it's a
2 A.  State regulations, yes. The federal 2 brochure, an equipment catalog slash product list and a
3 regulations dom't require that. 3  memorandum describing the Grunsky meter change methed.
4 Q. Okay. So that's enly in the state, not the 4 You listed them in Data Request 4. Are those the only
5 federal? 5 documents you received from Laclede in response to your
6 A, Correct. 6 inquiry to Laclede?
7 Q. I'm going te give you the -- what will be 7 A, Yes.
8 Plaintiff's Exhibit or Union Exhibit 2. 8 Q. Did the Staff review any other documents
g (UNION EXHIBIT NO. 2 WAS MARKED FOR | 9 that were evidently not provided by Laclede?
10 IDENTIFICATION BY THE REPORTER.) 10 A, We locked at - I think I said here
11 MR. FRANSON: Actually, if you're going to 11 somewhere that I fooked on the Internet just to see what
12 give this to Rick, that will save me the trouble. 12  else was available for the Grunsky bag method,
13 MR. ZUCKER: What's being handed out? 13 Q. Which leads to my next question. Did any
14 MR. FRANSON: Exhibit No. 2. It's the DR 14 of the sites that you look at -- or [ooked at contain
15  to Staff -- actually the DR is from Staff to - I'm 15 information other than the descriptive information that
16 sorry — from the Union to Staff. 156 you list here, like patent dates and the description of
17 MS. MARTIN: Do you not have a copy, Rick? 17 the method?
18 THE WITNESS: Our response. 18 A No.
19 MS. MARTIN: It's the response. 19 Q. The response also states that the Internet
20 MR, ZUCKER: Ng, I do not have a copy. 20 turned up -~ this is the last sentence of your first
21 MS. MARTIN: Well, your soon will, I guess. 21 response -- no information indicating problems with the
22 THE WITNESS: Sorry, it's my fault. 22  method found. Do you see where I am?
23 MR. ZUCKER: It's okay. 23 A, Right.
24 BY MS. MARTIN: 24 Q. Okay. Was this because it was an absence
25 Q. Okay. Do you recognize Exhibit 2 as the |25 of data on problems found or not found?

T R T e R T T MG B Ml AL

7 (Pages 25 to 28)

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Phone: 1.800.280.DEPO(3376)

Fax: 314.644.1334



ROBERT LEONBERGER 7/6/2006

Page 29 Page 31
1 A, Tjust didn't find anything. 1 about the same time that I tatked with Ben, So if Ben
2 Q. Okay. Did you find any information 2 says he wasn't there, he may not have been there. I may
3 discussing whether or not there were -- that stated there 3 have confused him with another conversation we may have
4 were no problems with the method? 4 had.
5 A, Just the information about it was being 5 Q. Okay. What were you told about the pilot
& used and successfully. : 6 program for the Grunsky bag by Laclede pérsonnel?
7 Q. So it was just general information that you 7 A. That they were doing a pilot in the Mo Nat
8 found? 8 area and had done a pilot in the Laclede area before they
9 A.  Right. _ 9 started implementation. '
10 Q. 1In DR -- in Data Request 2 in your 10 Q. What is first area you said?
11 response; you have the word studies in a parenthetical. I 11 A. Missouri Natural.
12 want to make sure that doesn't mean -- does that mean that | 12 Q. And were you given the details of the
13  the Staff might have undertaken another sort of research 13 program?
14 that wouldn't be covered by the word studies? 14 A. My understanding, they had done
15 A.  The word studies is used in the Data 15 approximately 100 meters in the Missouri Natural area
16 Request, and 5o I used that just studies, meaning that we 16 where they had actuaily used the Grunsky bag and gone
17 didn't have, as I said before, any formal -- we started a 17 inside to see if there were any problems with the pilot
18 formal investigation of the Grunsky bag and had, you know, 18 lights still being lit.
19  information written out about that, no. 19 Q. Were you told about the pilot program
20 Q. Soitdoesn't mean that there may be other 20 before the pilot program or after?
21 written documents - 21 A.  Ithink I was aware of it. We weren't
22 A, No. 22 really -- T wasn't tracking it for a specific event, but I
23 Q. --that Staff prepared that you wouldn't 23  think I was aware of it.
24 call a study? 24 Q. Okay. Were you told that -- what the
25 A No. 25 results of the pilot program were?
Page 30 Page 32
1 Q. Okay. InDR 3, you list conversations or 1 A. At this point, yes.
2 the names of people with whom the Staff discussed the 2 Q. When they were -- if you know, when they
3 Grunsky bag method who worked for Laclede. Was itypuwho | 3 were checking in the houses during this pilot program
4 had the conversations with these individuals that are 4 after doing the Grunsky method meter change, do you know
5 listed in DR 37 5 what was being checked?
<] A.  Yes, we were - yes, there was other -- we & A, My understanding was just to see if the
7 were talking about things, but I may have -- T put those 7 pilot lights were still operational.
8 names down as who I thought we talked to. Idon't have 8 Q. And the pilot liohts would be on gas
9 detailed notes of who I talked to on that stuff. It's 9 appliances, gas furnaces -- :
1 just by my recollection. 10 A.  Right.
11 Q. Butit probably would have been you who had 11 Q. --things like that? %
12 the conversations? 12 So the only other utility in Missouri, gas
13 A, Thave had the conversation, yes. 13 utility that you know that uses this method is Missouri
14 Q. And who is Mark Lauber? 14 Gas Energy; is that correct?
15 A.  Mark Lauber is a superintendent for 15 A Yes.
16 Laclede. We work with him In the operations side. 16 Q. If another —
17 Q. And what about Ben McReynolds? 17 A.  That I'm aware of.
18 A.  I'm not sure of Ben's exact title. 18 Q. I'msorry. If another gas utility in
19 Q. Did he have some responsibility for 19. Missouri wanted to use the method, would they have to come
20 implementing the Grunsky bag method on Laclede's side? 20 tatk to the PSC first? E
21 A, We were telking to Ladede about a number 21 A, They wouldn't have to come talk to the PSC,
22 of things at the time, and I put his name down because we 22 ne.
23 ‘talked about some things, and I'm not sure if Ben was - 23 Q. Okay. So they could just start using it
24 there was other Ladede personnel. 1 believe Ben was 24 without letting the PSC know?
25 there, but it may Have been other subjects we were talking 25 A Yes,
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i Q. Soit's possible somebody else might be 1 Q. So Grunsky wouldn't be discussed in that? j
|
2 wsing it and you just don't know yet? 2 A.  Correct. -
3 A Poszibly. 3 Q. Arethere any -- do you know if there are %
4 Q. Missouri Gas Energy, you indicated, has 4 limitations on time of year that the Grunsky method can be }j
5 been using it for about ten years? 5 used successfully? ;
a A.  Overten years, I believe. 6 A, Iweuld assume that -- my understanding ;
7 Q. I'm going to ask you a question about this, 7 would be the size of the load could pessibly be 2 problem, ;
8 and just let me know if I'm crossing over into public or 8 but that could be —~ the load couid be at a time of year ?i
9 private - 9 orit could be at a size of the facility. But 1 mean, if §
10 MR, FRANSON: we'll let you know. 10 the meters ¢hange out fairly quickly, I'm not sure there's {
11 BY MS. MARTIN: 11 a problem in most residential applications. §
12 Q. --information. 12 Q. Does it make a difference whether or not ”%'
i3 You state in here that MGE personnel 13  the Grunsky's being used in the summer as oppased to the f
14 indicated that they had had success using the method and | 14 winter? ‘
15 had not identified any problems using the method. That's | 15 A.  On a residential application, the load 9«
16 the [ast sentence of DR 3. 16 would be less -- possibly be less in the summertime, but 5;
17 My question is, do you know, does that -- 17 the amount of time that the meter's out of service §
18 did that mean to you that they had been using -- what do 18 doesn't -- wouldn't necessarily make it a problem. §
19 you mean to say in that sentence, Is what I'm trying to 19 Q. And when you're talking about the load, is é
20 getat? Did you mean to say that they'd been using the 20 that the amount of gas that’s being -- ’2
21 method, they had not had problems with pilot lights going | 21 A Yes. %
22 out or other sorts of gas leak issues when they were using | 22 Q. -- given to a house or business? %;
23 this method? 23 Okay. I'm going to ask you a couple of %
24 A Yeah, basically the method was successful 24 questions about AMR now, and I don't believe that we have %
25  and they were able {0 change the meter out without 25 our responses to our AMR discovery, so that should -- §
2
|
Page 34 Page 36 f
1 problems like the pilot lights geing cut, things like 1 MR, FRANSON: Before we go on, have you §
2 that. , 2 sentany discovery requests to Staff in the AMR case? :
3 Q. They had not identified any problems using 3 MS. MARTIN: No.
4 the method. Does that mean that they -~ that you were not 4 MR. FRANSON: That's ali I wanted to be
5 aware that -- that there were never situations where pilot 5 sure
6 lights were going out? 5 MS, MARTIN: We don't have responses, but
7 A, I basically asked thern that question, if 7 it wasn't to you-all that we served it.
8 they know of any problems. The answer was no, 8 MR. FRANSON: ! was going to say, if you
g Q. In either the -- have you discussed or -- 9 had, Iwasn't aware of it.
10  in the meetings that you go to for the NAPSR, regional or 10 MS. MARTIN: No, we haven't.
11 annual, has the Grunsky bag method been discussed? 11 BY MS, MARTIN: §
12 A, Idon'trecall 12 Q. When did you first -- when did the Staff
13 Q. Do you get literature from that 13 first learn that Laclede wanted to implement a system-wide §
14 organization? 14 AMR, automated meter reading system on its gas meters? i
15 A, We have just mailings when we're going to 15 A. I'm not really aware. I think over five %
16 have meetings and things of that nature. We have phone 16 years ago. 1
17 calis on a continuous basis. 17 Q. WhenI ask you to provide me aday ora
18 Q. Not like newsletters about the HUD issues 18 time frame, I'm not expecting you to be able to say
19 and gas safety? 19 Janwary 'G1. Just an estimate’s fine. And how did you
20 A, No. 20 become aware that Laclede wanted to implement the AMR on é
21 Q. Okay. What about the other organization, 21 its gas meters? %
22 NACE? I know you testified that you don't go to meetings, 22 A, Just discussions with us about that. %
23 bt do you get any sort of written newsletters or - 23 Q. Isthe transfer of the meters to an AMR :
24 A, There's newsletters from that. Thatisa 24 system something that Laclede needs to have approval from
25 corrosion control arganization. . 25 the PSC for?
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Page 37 Page 39
1 A, The actual transfer of taking the index 1 one area where Staff had made a recommendation in one of
2 off, putting a new index on, no. I guess there are rate 2 our audits that Laclede should consider using AMR, I think
3 implications that sometimes they come in and talk to us 3 Itwasa 1985 case.
4 about the rate implications that may -- not me 4 Q. And that's a case with a 1985 dash --
5 particularly, but our rate staff of rate implications of a 5 A, It's a management audit case.
6 large project, but - b Q. What's a management audit?
7 Q. 5o just to make sure I understand this, if 7 A.  The PSC has a section that does management
8 Laclede just wanted to take the dial that was on their 8 audits and locks at the efficiency of the operations. In
3 meters and change it to this AMR dial, this device to do 9 this case they looked at using AMR as one of the aspects
1¢ the reading, that's not something they would need approval | 10 of that particular audit. ’
11 for, but there may be other implications of that they 11 Q. Sowhen a management audit is done and a
12 would need approval for? ’ 12 gas utility or another utility, but we're talking about
13 A, Correct. Specifically their tariff, they 13 gas utilities, so —
14 were changing the way that AMR was going to be used {0 do 14 A.  Right. Notonly gas utilities, I think,
15 certain things, and the tariff required them to dc certain 15 butin this case, that's the one they did on Laclede.
16 things, so the tariff was changed. 16 Q. Other than that, did the PSC Staff prepare
17 Q. Okay. And so I think one of the things 17 any written documents discussing the benefits or costs of
18 we're all familiar with from one of the other issues that 18 AMR?
19 arose was the variance case where they needed to havea -- | 19 A.  No, my staff didn"t.
20 they wanted a change in how the meters were replaced or 20 Q. Do you know whether or not there was a test
21 selected for replacement as a result of AMR? 21 program with Laclede for the AMR implementation?
22 A.  Right. 22 A, Ithink they had a pilot program, but I
23 Q. Butthat was a separate matter? 23 don't know when it exactly was.
24 A.  Right. 24 Q. There are other gas utilities in Missouri
25 Q. Gkay. Did you have any discussions with 25 that have AMR on their gas meters; is that correct?
Page 38 Page 40
1 anybody from Laclede about their implementation of AMRor | 1 A, Yes.
2 their plan to implement AMR? 2 Q. Do you know which ones they are?
3 A.  Qverthe years? yes. 3 A. I know MGE has a form of AMR. It's not
4 Q. Yes, over the years. Let's just go back, 4 guite the same as what Laclede is using, and then AmerenUE
5 though, to when you first learned about it. Do you recall S has the - basically used the same Celnet technology, I
6 having discussions with folks at Laclede about their plan 6 believe.
7 to implement AMR? 7 Q. And do either MGE cr AmerenUE have to
g A.  Yes, we had discussions about It 8 provide statistics or reports to the PSC about their
9 Q. Okay. Do you know who you discussed it % automated meter reading programs?
10 with? 10 A. To my group specifically about safety or --
11 A, Varous people. The person that was the i1 Q. Well, safety effectiveness, how well it
12 head of that was Bo Matisziw, M-a-t-i-s-z-i-w. 12 works, problems that are associated with it.
13 M-a-t-i-s-z-i-w, 13 A.  They may be required in 3 rate case or some
14 Q. Were you provided any documents from 14 cther case, but I'm not aware. It's not given to me.
15 Laclede about AMR? 15 Q. They don’t have to report anything to you
16 A, Tcan't recall if we had documents or not. 16 about how well the system's working?
17 Q. Well, did the PSC Staff do a formal 17 A, Correct. There may be cther things in like
18 investigation of the AMR project? 18 a rate case that a management audit looks at or something
19 A.  Did our Staff? 19 [ike that, but I'm not aware of it. My staff does not
20 Q. Yeah. 20 have anything. H
21 A.  No. 21 Q. Now, if a -- hypothetically, if a gas leak §
22 Q So- 22 occurred at a Celnet, when the Celnet device was putin,
23 A I know that our engineering analysis or our 23 it would be reported should it fall into the categories we :
24 people had back, I think in the mid '80s had done a 24  talked about earlier where it caused property damage over
25 recommendation that Laclede actually go to AMR. So our 25 a certain amount or loss of life or injury or something
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1 like that; is that correct? 1 in the public domain and looks like in the reguiations i

2 A.  Well, if there’s 2 gas leak, that should be 2 that you've got?

3 reported to Laclede that there was a gas leak and they 3 A.  Right. Tmean, there's -~

4 would respond to that leak. Now, reported, do you mean 4 Q. 1It's one of the forms? %

5 reporied to the PSC? 5 A, It's aform - it's a federal form that's §

6 Q. Yes. 6 required to be turned in to the Federal Department of §

7 A.  Like I said, that criteria, it wouldn't 7 Transportation annually.

8 necessarily be reported to the PSC. 8 Q. Okay. And now, you alzo say that

9 Q. And that's what I was trying -- I mean, my S occasionally you get, I guess, calls from the public
10 question was just, you would hear about the results of it 10 reporting problems directly to the PSC; is that correct? E
11 only if it fell within those, the loss of life, damage to 11 A Correct. g
12 property that we tatked about earlier; is that correct? 12 Q. Now, do you-all have a hotline for that? §
13 A Well, I become aware of some that there has 13 A. We have a consumer services line. §
14 been allegations that there has been some leaks on some, i4 Q. And the public takes advantage of this, I §
15  but we've fooked into those addresses and those meters, 15 gather? §
16  yes, 16 A.  We have - they have all sorts of
17 Q. How would you hear about those? 17 complaints from all serts of different utilities. %
18 A, Ttrough complaints. 18 Q. When you receive a complaint from a gas %
19 Q. From the public you mean? 19  utility customer -- we'll hear speak specifically about
20 A Yes. 20 AMR since that's the subject of the complaint. Say
21 Q. Let me just -- before I ask you about that, 21 somebody called in, said somebody came over and stuck this %
22 when you get the other report, we had talked about annual | 22 AMR device on my meter, now I have this nasty gas odor and %
23 report, and on there the annual amount of gas leaks is 23 I called the people and complained. Does the PSC do i
24  reported. Tt doesn't break it down by where it was? 24 anything about that? %
25 A No. 25 A, I'm not sure how I got this, but we've

%
Page 42 Page 44 té

1 Q. So it just would say 100 gas leaks were 1 looked at a couple of addresses where there's a - .

2 found this year? 2 supposedly a severe feak caused and we checked with

3 A.  Corrosicn leak, a leak due to material 3 Laclede about what they -- they wanted to test that meter. [;

4 defect, leak due to outside force damage, those kind of 4 Q. And is a formal investigation done at that

5 categories. 5 time?

6 Q. So there are categories. It's just you 6 A, Woe just ask them if they tested that meter

7 wouldn't say we had a leak at the meter? 7 and what the specifically was the problem with that meter.

8 A, Right. 8 Q. You're talking about you asked Laclede?

g Q. That would maybe fall within the eguipment, | 9 A, Yes. .
30 the second ane you mentioned? 10 Q. Okay. So the consumer would cali the PSC
11 A. Tt would depend on what the particular leak 11 and then the PSC calls Laclede?

12 was. 12 A.  Idon't know if it's a consumer or if it's

13 Q. So what are the categories on that annual 13 someone else.

14 report for gas leak, if you know? 14 Q. Someone else? F
15 MR. FRANSON: Mr. Leonberger, if you're 15 A.  Could be an employee or something. I'm not
16 going io cite a specific regulation, please do that when 16 sure.
17 you answer. 17 MR. ZUCKER: Excuse me a minute, Thisis

18 THE WITNESS: There's a specific form from 18 Rick Zucker, We're talking hypothetically now, or are we

19 the --it's actually the Pipeline Hazard Materials Safety 1% talking about an actual complaint?

20 Administration of the Department of Transportation, the 20 MS. MARTIN: Well, T was actually asking _
21 cause of the leaks. There are corrosion, natural forces, 21 about a hypothetical, just generally what the PSC-would do
22  excavation, other outside force damage, material or wells, 22 in that situation, and I think he's just mentioned a ]
23 equipment, operations and other, 23 couple of addresses but we haven't specifically asked

24 BY MS. MARTIN: 24 about those addresses.

25 Q. Okay. And that's something we could find 25 MR. ZUCKER: He's mentioned a couple of
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1 addresses? 1 A Yes.
2 MS. MARTIN: He just mentioned that he 2 Q. And can you tell me in each case what the g
3 looked at a couple of addrasses. 3 results wera? g
4 MR. FRANSON: Rick, he has not said it's 4 A.  One of them they couldn't find a leak. Cne I
5 123 Laclede Building in St. Louis, Missouri or something 5 of them they tested the meter to five pounds before it — g
6 like that. No, he has not named a specific address yet. 6 they found a very small leak. It's five - you can
7 MS. MARTIN: Does that answer your 7 normally operate at about a quarter pound, and they had to é
8 question? 8 test it to five pounds before they found a small leak.
9 MR. ZUCKER: Sort of. Go azhead. Ej Q. So at normal operating pressure, there
10 BY MS. MARTIN: 1¢ wasn't a leak?
11 Q. Okay. So in any event, somebody called. 11 A.  Right.
1?2 We don't know if it's a consumer or an employee. They | 12 Q. And those are the only calls that you're
13  tell you there's a problem, and you-all will call Laclede 13 aware of from the public about AMR installation? %
14 to ask Laclede to give you information about it; is that 14 A, Yes, Weli, I mean, we've had some other ;
15  correct? 15 calls, people who said that they didn't want the -- they g
16 A, Yes. 16 didn't want Celnet to — no. There's been other calls. 1
17 Q. And that would be the general process when 17 Q. Well, Jet's stick -- I'm asking you about %
18 a customer calls in with a leak or an employee or 18 safety of the AMR installation, not people not wanting it, %
19 whoever's calling it in, that’s the normal process you-all | 19 so -- L
2¢  would follow? 20 A.  No, not wanting — they wanted Laclede to g
21 A. It depends on what the allegation is. 21 instalf themn. §
22 Q. Okay. So for other sorts of allegations 22 Q. Right. In terms of calls about problems g
23  you would perhaps follow a different path? 23 caused by it being placed in there, you've not received }
24 A.  Perhaps we would -- in the course if we're 24 calls other than the two you just talked about?
25 going to do an inves-- we do our annual inspections of 25 A.  Specifically wea've heard allegations from
§
Page 46 Page 48
i Laclede at different times. We would maybe incorporate 1 the -- I believe in the letters from the representatives 4
2 locking at that in the course of our normal looking at 2 of the ex parte comments that there were leakage caused.
3 records. So we wouldn't just ask them what it is, we may 3 Woe called and contacted Ladlede once we saw those to say,
4 ftry to find it ourselves, or we may actually do a special 4 in geperal, have you -- do you have any that you know of,
5 inspection, go up there and say, we want to see the leak 5 these severe leaks they're taiking about? And there was
6 records for an area. So¢ it depends on what the allegation 6 no - they have no knowledge of those severe leaks,
7 s 7 allegations there are leaks.
8 Q. Okay. Now, going more specifically to AMR, 8 Q. Is AMR -- has AMR been addressed in any of
9 have you had occasion to call Laclede about complaints] & the meetings that you've gone to, either regional or
10 you’ve received on the consumer hotline about AMR 10 annual of the NAPSR?
11 installation? 11 A.  Notthat I'm aware of. We discuss the fact
12 A. I think it was the consumer hotline, but I 12 that a lot of people are going to AMR, going to using the
13 can't remember what it was about, but we had a couple of 13 method. -
14 addresses we wanted to chack on. : 14 Q. Any discussions about how effective it's
15 Q. When you say couple, do you mean three? 15 been at the NAPSR meetings?
16 A, Two. 16 A.  Effective how?
17 Q. Two. And in those specific cases, what was | 17 Q. Well, in terms of streamlining the billing
18 the process that you followed? 18 process.
19 A.  We asked them to - if they were aware that 19 A, Just the method of —
20 the meter was leaking, and they weren't aware that -- one 20 Q. Saving money, time?
21 of them they went out and found the meter and tested it. 21 A, Not having -- the AMR process of not having
22 Q. And when you say they, you mean Laclede? |22 to go read individual meters and that kind of thing. g
23 A, Yes, 23 Q. Any discussion of safety problems connected ||
24 Q. And then Laclede called you back with the 24 with AMR installation at the NAPSR meetings? "
25 results of the test? 25 A.  No. There would be no regulatory M%
12 (Pages 45 to 48)
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1 requirements addressing change ouf, of meters, so it's not 1 A, No. We were aware of, again, that this had :
2 really a safety issue, as far as safety regulations 2 been done in other utilities and what had happened there,
3 requiring change out of meters. 3 sowe weren't concerned that another utility was going to
4 Q. So has there been any -- I guess I want to 4 install AMR using a similar method, no.
5 make sure, has there been any anecdotal discussions with 5 Q. Had you received reports from other
6 these other folks that you were at these NASR meetings 6 utilities that they were experiencing any problems with
7 with about experiences they've had with AMR installation 7 AMR?
8 intheir states related to safety? 8 A, What kind of problems?
9 A Thaven't heard any problems, no. 9 Q. Well, I guess I was going to have you tell
10 Q. Just briefly going back to the pilot 10 me when you received reports and then ask you what sort of
11 program, AMR program, do you know how extensive that was, | 11 problems.
12 Llaclede's pilot program on AMR? 12 A, The only problems that I was aware of that
13 A No. 13 was installation of the AMRs were installed to -- the
14 Q. Do you know if it was? 14 index was installed too tightiy and they were not
15 A 1probably did at one time, but I don't 15 functioning correctly. It wasn't any safety prcblems. It
16 remember, 16 was more of a - they had te go back out and reinstall the
17 Q. Okay. 5o you might have -- 17 index.
18 MR. ZUCKER: I'm‘sorry. Are you talking 18 Q. And--
19 about the pilot pregram with AMR or the piiot program with 19 A, That wasn't Laclede. That was with another
20  the Grunsky methed? 20 utility.
21 MS. MARTIN: AMR. 2t Q. Isthe index the thing that gives you the
22 MR. ZUCKER: Did we establish a pilot 22 reading?
23 program with AMR? 23 A.  The index is the plastic [ittle box that
24 MS. MARTIN: He testified there was a -- 24 sits on the outside of the meter that has the dials.
25 THE WITNESS: 1 testified that I believe 25 Q. Okay. But you weren't receiving reports
Page 50 Page 52
1 there was some kind of pilot program. That was many years 1 from other utilities that there were leaks assocliated with
2 ago,s0l-- 2 the actual installation or other problems associated with
3 MR. FRANSON: The answer to your guestion, 3 the actual installation of the device?
4 Rick, is yes, we did estabiish that. 4. A.  Ireceived no reports like that.
5 MR. ZUCKER: All right. Thank you. 5 Q. No safety complaints; is that correct?
6 BY MS. MARTIN: 6 A.  Correct.
7 Q. Well, do you recall whether or not you 7 Q. If a meter was damaged at the time of
8 would have received any sort of written report of the 8 installation of AMR, would that be reported by the utility
9 success of the pilot program or the test program of AMR? | 9 to the PSC?
10 A.  Idon't believe I received -- that's not to 10 A, Not necessarily.
11 say, again, that another section or another department may 11 Q. And under what circumstances would that be
12 not have seen a report. 12 reported?
13 Q. You didn't get one? 13 A, If it met one of the criteria of an
14 Ao No. 14  accident or if they felt we were having all these
i5 Q. And you didn't see one? 15 discussions about AMR that they would want just to tell us
16 A. I may have -- in meetings we had'1 may have 16 about that, possibly.
17 seen one, but I don't have one, no. 17 Q. Okay. Sothe mandatory reporting would be
i8 Q. Butdo you recall whether there was one 18 if it fell within one of those incidents we talked about
19 that you did see? 19 earlier?
20 A, No. 20 A Yes,
21 Q. At the time that AMR -~ that Laclede began 21 Q. Otherwise it would be a voluntary report by
22 implementing AMR on a system-wide basis, did the Staff | 22 Laclede --
23  have any concerns about its safety? 23 A, Right.
24 A, Specifically installing AMR on a meter? 24 Q. --because they think you should knew; is
25 Q. Yeah. 25 that correct?
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Page 53 Page 35 |
1 A.  Yeah, 1 training that those individuals would have to have.
2 Q. Does the PSC -- does Laclede provide 2 Q. OCkay.
3 reports or other sorts of written documents to the PSC 3 A, So the rule requires that the company make
4 relating to complaints it might be receiving from its 4 aplan and 2 program, znd then that program becomes what
5 customers in regard to AMR installation? 5 they have to train pecple or. So the rule requires to
6 A.  Notthat I'm aware of, & make the plan, then the plan is a training method.
7 Q. Soif a customer complains to Laclede, oh, - 7 Q. Okay. And does the PSC review the plan
8 I hate this, it's not working right, come out here and fix 8 that the company --
g it, you're not going to get here at the PSC any sort of ] A, Yes,
i0 report of that? 10 Q. --develops?
11 A, Not unless we have a case going that's 11 Can the company change the plan without PSC
12 asking those spedific questions. 12 approval? .
13 Q. Okay. In the absence of that sort of 13 A.  Thay have — any change to the plan have to
14 thing, that kind of a complaint’s not passed on to the PSC| 14 be given to us in a specified amount of time.
15 by Laclede? 15 Q. And then the PSC reviews those changes?
16 A, Notto me, no. 16 A. Right
17 Q. Okay. Does the PSC impose any training or 17 Q. Does the PSC or has the PSC been monitoring
18 qualification requirements on the individuals whe install | 18 the field installation of the AMR devices by Laclede?
19 and service residential gas meters? 19 A.  Have we been, like, going out in the field
20 A.  Say that again. 20 and looking at them?
21 Q. Does the PSC impose any training or 2] Q. Yes,
22 qualification requirements on individuals who install and | 22 A.  Noo
23 service residential gas meters? 23 Q. Do you receive any reports from Laclede
24 A, Yes, there's operatar qualification 24 updating the P5C as to the status of the implementation of
25 requirements. 25 AMR?
Page 54 Page 56
1 Q. Are those contained in the regulations? 1 A, Over the course of time, we've had some
2 A.  Yes. 2 reports of how far along they are, but I don't look at
3 Q. Doesthe PSC -- I'm sorry. Other than 3 those on & regular basis. That's not to say that scmegne
4 what's in the regulations, are there any rules or 4 else in the Commission would not be getting those.
5 otherwise from the PSC specifically discussing training 5 Q. Butyou're not. And those reports you just
6 and qualification for individuals who install and service 6 mentioned, are those generally we've now finished X amount [
7 residential gas meters? 7 inthis amount of time in this area or is there more 3
8 A.  There's the old operator requirements if 8 detail?
9 you're working with gas, like changing out a meter, those 9 A, Basically how many they've gotten done and
10 kind of things, there's cartain requirements, certain 10  where they are.
11 tasks you have to be trained to do. 11 Q. Do those reports indicate whether they've
12 Q. No, butis all of that contained in the 12 had any problems with the installation of any?
13  regulations? 13 A.  In general, I've asked that -- I've asked
14 A.  If you're asking if there's individual 14  that general question about problems and there wasn't.
15  requirements for the meter change-out people, for people 15 Q. Butit's not contained in the report?
16 who do leak investigations, no. There's a generic 16 A, There's no report necessary. Just more of
17 basically operator qualification. 17 a phone cail or discussions. There's na formal report.
18 Q. Okay. So more what I was trying to get to 18 Q. This isn't a written report?
19 is whether or not you've got those sort of qualification 19 A, No.
20 requirements in a place other than in the regulations or | 20 MR. FRANSON: When you're at a good
21 if they're all set forth in the -- 21 stopping poink, can we stop?
22 A.  The regulations set forth the operator is 22 MS. MARTIN: We cen stop right now.
23 supposed to develop an operator qualification plan that 23 (A BREAK WAS TAKEN.)
24  would set out the specific covered actions that would have 24 BY MS. MARTIN:
25 to be -- that would be covered by the rule and the 25 Q. After -- has the PSC at this time, after

A T o e e e ey

www.midwestlitigation.com

R

B e B e A e

MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Phone: 1.800.280.DEPO(3376)

.

14 (Pages 53 to 56)

Fax: 314.644.1334



QS

ROBERT LEONBERGER 7/6/2006

Page 57 Page 59
I some good part of the installation of AMR's been com p]e:ted ! not have to do a gas safety inspection at the time a mawg
2 have any safety concerns about the AMR installation? 2 customer gets their service; is that correct?
3 A. Do we have any concerns, specific concemns 3 A.  According to our regulations.
4zt this point? 4 Q. According to your regulations. I just
5 Q. At this point. 5 wanted to ask you one more question about Union Exhibit 1,
6 A, No. 6 which was the Report and Order in Case No. 95-320. You've
7 MR. FRANSON: Okay. I should have made 7 gotitin front of you. On page 6 of the Order, and the
8 this clear a long time ago. There is a distinction 8 numbers are at the bottom left, pages 1 of 8, 2 of 8, 6 of
9 between the PSC and the PSC Staff. And when you say does 9 8. I'm at page 6 of 8. Actually, I think what I want is
10 the PSC have some concerns as an example, that would 10 the very bottom. Do you recall that in this Order the
11 suggest maybe that the PSC has held some kind of hearings 11 Commission suggested a, what they were calling a
12 and made a determination. Ithink every question like 12 recapturing the safety inspections that were lost by the
13 that's going to be no. However, Mr. Leanberger represents 13 change in method of meter replacement?
14 the PSC Staff, and so when he's been saying the PSC, he's 14 A, I'm aware of that, yes.
15 really meaning the PSC Staff; is that correct? 15 Q. Do you know whether or not Laclede has ever
16 THE WITNESS: Yes. Sorry. I apologize. 16 implemented a program to recapture those lost
17 MS. MARTIN: No. Because I think some of 17 opportunities as the Commission calls it on page 62
18 the questicns will sometimes say PSC or PSC Staff, and 18 A. At the time, right about this thme in
19 then sometimes I've gotten sloppy and just said PSC. 1 19 19977
20 always mean PSC Staff. 20 Q. I'm not sure when it was.
21 MR. FRANSON: I should have made that 21 MR. FRANSON: What is the date on the
22 dear. 22 Qrder?
23 THE WITNESS: And many times, like 1 said 23 THE WITNESS: Issue date of May 13 of 1997,
24 before, as far as the AMR, AMR is basically a 24 The Staff had - was talking to -- there was congern about
25 metering-type function, not necessarily a safety functicn, 25 the leaking of the copper service lines and replacement of
Page 58 Page 60
1 sothere may be other areas of the Staff, like the 1 the copper service lines. I think at the time Laclede was
2 engineering analysis section that may be doing things that 2 replacing less than a thousand of those. So we had had a
3 I'm not necessarily aware of. I'm not saying I'm speaking 3 very big safety concern about leaking copper service lines
4 for the whole Staff in most cases that aren't involving 4  because of some incidents we'd had.
5 safety. o 5 So at that time, there was a specific
6 BY MS. MARTIN: 6 program that was implemented to do inspections, but we
7 Q. Now, is it your understanding that once an 7 had - the Laclede was ramping -- we were having them or
8 AMR device is on a gas meter, that Laclede no longer has { 8 discussing with them doing more replacements of copper
9 to visit the customer home to obtain a meter reading? 9 service lines and daing more leak surveys over coppar
10 A, Yes. 10 service lines because that was a very big safety concern.
11 Q. That's the premise of AMR, correct? 11 Sc at that point a lot of their resources
12 A.  Right. 12 were going to that particular issue, going from replacing
13 Q. So Laclede no longer has to turn off gas 13 less than a thousand to replacing thousands, about the
14 service when a transfer of service is made; is that 14 '§7, '98, '99 time frame. :
15 correct? 15 BY MS. MARTIN:
16 A.  If they're doing a transfer they would not 16 Q. Allright. So the Order we're tafking
17 have to go there to read the meter, no. 17 about, the Commission's talking about again on page 6,
i8 Q. Because they could get their reading for 18 that as a result of the change in the way meters are going
15 the final bill and start -- when the new customer comes | 19 to be selected for replacement, there's going to be an
20 in, they can get the remote read? 20 average of 20,000 fewer meter visits. Do you see where
21 A.  There would be no requirement from the 21 TI'mlooking at? It's the second full paragraph,
22 safety regulations for them to go physically to the site, 22 second-to-last paragraph.
23 no. 23 A, Yes.
24 Q. Okay. And if they're not having to turn 24 Q. ' And in this Order, they're talking about
25 off the gas and then turn the gas back on, Laclede does 25 finding a way to -- well, let me rephrase that.
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Page 61 Page 63
1 The Commission suggested that the 1 because of incidents we'd had. Se at that point there was
2 appropriate response would be to implement a programte | 2 alot more activity that Laclede was going from replacing,
3  recapture those lost opportunities, do you recafl that? 1 3 like I said, less than 1,000 service lines tc more and
4 think we just talked about that, 4 more and mare, up to where in 2000 they started replacing
5 A.  There's discussion about recapturing those 5 B,000 service lines a year.
6 opportunities elsewhere in Laclede's safety nspection 6 So they had a -- there's a safety
7 program. 7 initiative that took a lot of man hours, a lot of work
) Q. Right. And so is your testimony that you 8  both doing the annual surveys over those and doing
9 believe that moving the safety, the lost opportunity to 9 replacement. Sc I don't know if it specificaily
10 the corrosion inspection and inspection you just talked 10 recaptured lost opportunities for inside work, but we
11 about would satisfy this? Is that-- 11 believe because of the leaks in -- the number of leaks and
12 MR. FRANSON: Objection, that calls for a 12 the incidents we've had, that that particular effort was
13 legal conclusion. No. 1, you're assuming that the 13 very important.
14 Commission ordered Laclede to do something. 14 Q. I guess the question I'm asking is kind of
15 MS. MARTIN: No. I dont mean to be 15 simpler. Was that corrosion — upping the corrosion
16 suggesting I think it was an Order. I think I said 16 inspection process and replacement process, was that in
17 suggestion. 17 response to this suggestion?
18 MR. FRANSCN: And, okay, moving on, then. 18 A No.
1% Next part of the objection is, what would satisfy this 15 Q. Itwas separate from that?
20 would be if there was some problem with the -- with 20 A Yes.
21 Laclede not complying with a Commission Order. That would 21 Q. Do you know whether or not Laclede has set
22 be an entirely different proceeding. And I can tell you 22 up any other sort of inside inspection program on its own
23 that since this isn't part of the order paragraph, there 23 voluntarily to recapture the lost opportunity to inspect
24 would be a big question at best whether this was an actual 24 20,0007 '
25  order of the Commission for Laclede to do something. 25 A, Notthat I'm aware of.
Page 62 Page 64
1 So I guess my main cbjection is to the way 1 MS. MARTIN: Okay. That was the only
2 your guestion is phrased about would it satisfy this. So 2 question I have, and I am finished.
3 I'm asking — you can probably get around my objection by 3 MR. FRANSON: I think I'm going to be last,
4 just rephrasing the question. 4 if I've got any questions for Mr, Leonberger.
5 MS. MARTIN: Yeah, let me do that. 5 MR. POSTON: May I ask a clarifying
6 BY MS. MARTIN: 6 question? Bob's saying, no, I can't.
7 Q. At the bottom of page 6 of the Commission’s 7 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR, POSTON:
8 Order, the Commission -- I certainly don't mean to be 8 Q. You had -- when you were talking about the
9 suggesting that the Commission’s ordering anything, but 9 Grunsky bags earlier, there had been guestions about load
10 they're suggesting that Laclede's -- the appropriate 10 differences?
11 response by Laclede to this variance it's granting in the 11 A.  Right.
12 way it's left in this replacement, would be to recapture 12 Q. Ijustwant to clarify. Were you saying
13 the lost opportunities to observe and remedy potentially 13 that a greater load could cause the Grunsky method to be
14 unsafe conditions in other aspects of its safety 14 unsafe?
15 inspection program. Is that what you understood? 15 A.  No, I didnt say that at all. I said that
16 A.  This said lost opportunity. It said 16 there may be some appli-- I'm just not aware of the
17 recapture lost opportunities elsewhere in the safety 17 specific, you know, where you -- at what time, what -- how
18  inspection programs. 18 big of BTU furnace or BTU appliance could be operating,
19 Q. Right. So what I'm asking -- what I was 19 but there's -- if you took a long time to do that method,
20 asking then was if you knew whether or not Laclede had 20 I assume there could be some — depends on the amount of
21 implemented a program to recapture the lost opportunities | 21 gas and pressure in the tank. I'm nct aware of the
22 that are discussed in this Order, and you then answered -- 22 specific specifications on that, no.
23 A.  What I said was that right about that same 23 MR. POSTCON: That's all,
24 time period, the corrosion of copper service lines and 24 THE WETNESS: I'm just saying in general,
25 replacement of copper service lines became a large issue 25 that's my thought that T guess you'd want to look at those
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1 things. 1 Q. Yes,sin H
2 MS. MARTIN: I just want to follow up to 2 A, No. g
3 that, 3 Q. And if you were concerned about the safety
4 REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MS. MARTIN: 4 of AMR installation, what would you do?
5 Q. That sort of thing might be addressed in 5 A, As I stated before, when we find something
6 the literature you Qet? 6 that the Staff belisves is an unsafe method or unsafe
7 A Right. 7 material, we would take measures to talk to the company
g Q. From the Grunsky company, correct? 8 about stopping to use that. If we believed the method or
g A, And I was just more familiar with how it S material was bad and they weren't voluntarily stopping to
10 worked, not specifically all of the -- where the cutoffs 10 use it, then we would talk to the Commission about having
11 were on certain -- when you shouid use them and not. 11 an order to stop.
1z MR. FRANSON: Rick, I think I'm last. 12 MR. ZUCKER: Thank you. That's all I have.
13 MR. ZUCKER: Okay. Let me just ask a few. 13 MR. FRANSON: A couple clarifying
14 And I'm sorry if ¥ repeat something that was already 14 questions, Mr. Leonberger.
15  asked. 15 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FRANSON:
16 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. ZUCKER: 16 Q. Let's talk about pipes in an average
17 Q. Mr. Leonberger, was it your testimony that 17 household. Let's use a hypothetical residential customer
18 based on MGE's Jong-time use of the Grunsky method, that 18 of Laclede. It's a normal three-be'droom, two-bath home,
18 you did not have concerns about Laclede using it? 12 we'll say 1,500 square feet, and it is set up, piped for
20 A. I was aware that the Grunsky method had 20 natural gas. What facilities would ordinarily be used to
21 been arcund for 50 or so years and then MGE was using it, 21 provide service by Laclede to this customer, and where
22 and I was aware that during our inspections that they were 22 does Laclede ownership and responsibility for those
23 saying they had not had any problems with it. So when 23 facilities begin and end, and where would the customer
24 ancther utility started to use the same type of method, it 24 ownership and responsibility begin and end?
25 didn't ralse concems, no. 25 A. In a typical residential service, there %
Page 66 Page 68 |
i Q. And if you had reason to believe that the . 1 would be a service line come up to the house. On the high
2 Grunsky meter change methed was unsafe, what would you do? | 2 pressure, there would be a regulator to reduce the
3 A, If we had knowledge of something, a 3 pressure to about a quarter of a pound, and there would be
4 particular method ar particular material that wasn't - 4 2 meter, and the regulatory respensibility or Laclede's
5 that we belleved wasn't working correctly or wasn't good, 5 property ends at the cutlet of that meter,
6 we would probably ask the company not to use that, and if [ On & low pressure, which would be — the
7 we felt strongly that it was a bad method, we would 7 pressure in the main would be essentially the same
8 probably go to the Commission and have them order them not 8 pressure that the appliances would operate at, there would
9 touselt 9  be a service line to the house. There would not be a
e Q. With regard to AMR, do you have any idea of 10 regulator because the pressure in the main would be the
11  about how many AMR units Laclede has installed to date? 11 same pressure the appliances operated at. There would be
12 A, Todate, no. 1don't know. Imean, T know 12 a meter and meter set piping going on, and the same thing,
13 It's over -- I believe it's over 200,000, but that 13 the Laclede property ends at the outlet of the meter.
14 number's quite a few months ago. I really don't know the 14 Q. And that meter in most instances is outside
15  exact number to date, no. 15 the house?
16 Q. Okay. 16 A, Ithink Laclede's — Mr. Zucker could
17 A, I'm not getting -- I'm not getting 2 week 17 say -~ correct me if I'm wrong -- but I believe --
18 by week or, you know, day by day update on the number 18 Q. Hold on. Let's not leave it to Mr. Zucker.
19 that's being installed, no. 19 A. I believe there's about a 60/40 split
20 Q. And. Have you received -- since Laclede 20 between -~ there's about 60 percent of their meters are
21 began installing AMR devices on meters last year, have you 21 outside and 40 percent are inside, is my recoliection.
22 received any reports of incidents related to the 22 Q. Okay. What you just talked about would
23 installation of an AMR meter? 23 cover the outside meters; is that correct?
24 A.  Incident like leaking gas causing a formal 24 A.  What's that?
25 incident? 25 Q. About where the responsibility ends,
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i Laclede's responsibility ends at that meter? 1  tarn-on.
2 A, Inside or outside, the responsibility of 2 A. My understanding is that our rule requires
3 Laclede would end at the outlet to the meter 3 the inspection at turn-on, that the federal rule doesn't
4 Q. At the outlet to the meter? 4 require that, and my understanding most -- from what I've
5 A Yes. 5 talked to my peers in other states, that they don't have a
[ Q. Or at the meter itself? 6 requirement even at turn-on to go inside and inspect the
7 A.  The outlet of the meter. 7 inside stuff.
8 Q. Which is connected to the meter itself? 8 Q. Soweren't -~ the answer wasn't lintited to
9 A, Right. There's an inlet and outlet to the 9 Missouri utilities?
10  meter, where the gas comes in the meter and out of the 10 A.  Waell, no. I asked that guestion because
11 meter. 11 the idea that other utilities, other states that I know of
12 Q. Tell me where more time, where does 12 den't have even the requirement to go inside when the gas
i3 Laclede's -- 13 is turned on, so I was just trying to figure cut what he
14 A.  The outlet of the meter. 14 was asking, if he was asking empirically in Missouri or
15 Q. Soonce the gas goes out of the meter and 15 nationwide,
16 on into the house, that's the customer's responsibility? 16 MR. FRANSON: Well, let's go back. I'l}
17 A. Right, past the outlet of the meter. . 17 ask that question.
18 Q. Okay. Do you know of any regulations that 18 RECROSS-EXAMIMATION BY MR. FRANSON:
19 require, other than when the interruption — when gas flow 19 Q. Generically in Missouri, unless the flow of
20 is interrupted to a house, that requires Laclede to go in 20 gasis interrupted, does -- Is there any requirement that
21 and do an inspection of the inside premises? 21 you know of in Missouri that the gas utility go inside and
22 A.  Specifically Laclede in Missouri or any 22 perform an inspection inside the customer’s home?
23 other -- 23 A.  If the utility - i the gas is physically
24 Q. Let's talk specifically about Laclede. 24 turned on, they have to go in and do an inspection of the
25 A, Unless the flow of gas is turned on, 25 inside piping and appliances. On an inside meter set,
Page 70 Page 72
1 there's not a requirement for them to go in and do an 1 thereis - there is Laclede's service [ine piping that
2 inside check. 2 goes up to the meter set, there are requirements of
3 Q. Any other LDCs that you are aware of? 3 corrosion control and leakage surveys that Laclede would
4 A.  No other LDCs that T know do a check on the 4 be required to go inside not only with -- go inside and do
5 inside piping unless they physically turn the gas on S aleak and inspection and do a corrosien inspection on the
6 according to our rules. ) 6 piping that goes - on their piping that goes to the
7 Q. And LDC stand for local distribution 7 meter, but not fuel piping that goes past the meter.. They
8 company. 8 would be required to geo inside the house on those specific
9 A, Which would be municipalities and 9 instances.
10 investor-owned companies. 10 Q. But all of those specific instances is
11 MR. FRANSON: The only cher thing we need 11 either where the gas is turned on anew, meaning after some :
12  to talk about, we need to talk about off the record some 12 time of interruption, or where the gas flow is :
13  of the things that we talked about may need to be deemed 13 interrupted?
14 highly confidential. We can talk about that. 14 A.  No. The requirement for deing an
i5 I don't believe 1 have any other questions 15 inspection on customer-owned piping is only when the gas
16 for Mr. Leonberger. Does anybody else? 16 fiow is turned on. There's a requirement to do periodic
17 MS. MARTIN: I just had one. 17 leskage surveys and corrosicn inspecticn of company-owned
18 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MS. MARTIN; 18 piping, Laclede piping before the meters, not when it's
19 Q. When you were talking - the last question 19 turned on, but en a periodic basis, no matter if it's
20 you asked about the LDCs, were you speaking specifically | 20 turned on or not.
21 about Missouri or were you speaking -- 21 MR. FRANSON: Okay. Idon't have any
22 A.  What guestion was that? 22 further guestions.
23 Q. -- nationwide? 23 MS. MARTIN: No, I don't either.
24 Whether or not the other LDCs had or 24 MR. POSTON: No.
25 performed any other inside inspection other than at 25 MR. FRANSON: Rick?
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1 MR. ZUCKER: No more for me. 1 SIGNATURE PAGE
2 THE REPORTER: Read and sign? 2 STATE OF MISSOURI )
3 MR. FRANSON: Yes. We will waive ) ss.
. 3 COUNTY OF COLE )
4 presentment, but not signature, ves. 4
5 THE REPCRTER: Rick, this is the court 5 I, Robert Leonberger, do hereby certify:
6 reporter. Did you want a copy? 8 That I have read the foregoing deposition;
7 MR. ZUCKER: Please. Do you do e-tran? 7 That I have made such changes in form and/or
3 THE REPORTER: Yes. g sub;tan;e o the 1<:jepc>sil:(ijon as ncwtight be necessary to
! render the same true and correct;
° MR. ZUCKER: That will be ﬁne' i0 That having made such changes thereon, I hereby
10 THE REPCRTER: Robert, did you want a copy? 11  subscribe my name to the deposition.
11 MR. FRANSON: Yes, I do, but I want the 12 I declare under penalty of perjury that the
12 mini. 13 foregoing is true and correct.
13 THE REPORTER: Mark, did you want a copy? 14 Executed the ____ day of, 20086, at
i4 MR. POSTON: FPlease. 1:
15 {PRESENTMENT WAIVED; SIGNATURE REQUESTED.) | 45
16 ROBERT LEONBERGER
17 18
18 Notary Public:
19 19 - -
My commission expires:
20
20
21 21
22 22
23 23
24 KF/Robert Lecnberger
24 USW Local 11-6 v, Laclede Gas Company
25
25
Page 74 Page 76
1 CERTIFICATE OF REPCRTER 5 Winess Robertf.iow:g: ::EEI’
i - rger
2 STATE OF MISSOURI ) InRe: USW Local 11-6 v. Laclede Gas Company
)} ss. 3
Upon reading the deposition and before subscribing
3 COUNTY OF COLE ) 4 thereto, the deponent indicated the following changes
4 should be made:
5 .
5 I,. KE!_L!?NE K. FEDDERSEN, RPR", CSR,. CCR, and Page Lne  Should read:
6 Notary Public within and for the State of Missouri, do 6 Reason assigned for change:
7 hereby certify that the witness whose testimony appearsin | 7 Fage Line  Should read:
. - Reason assigned for change:
8 the foregoing deposition was duly sworn by me; that the 8
9 testimony of said witness was taken by me to the best of Fage Line Should read:
10 my ability and thereafter reduced to typewriting under my 1% E:;:D” Siig"egrrgﬂlgh;g%f'
11 direction; that 1 am neither counsel for, related to, nor Reason assigned for change:
: : ; : 1
12 emplo.yte:d by any of the parties to the action to which t_hls Page Line  Should read:
13 deposition was taken, and further that I am not & relative | 12 Reason assigned for change:
14  or employee of any attorney or counsel emplayed by the 3 ;:g;’m ';‘s"s?gnezhfg';"ghfﬁdé_
15  parties thereto, nor financially or otherwise interested 14 o
16 in the outcome of the action. Page Line Should reac:
17 15 Reason assigned for change:
16 Page Line Should read:
18 . Reason assigned for change:
17
KELLENE K.lFEDDERSEN, RPR,.CSR, CCR Page Line Shoud read:
19 Notary Public, State of Missouri 18 Reason assigned for change:
e P 19 Page Lire Should read:
(Commnsqued n C_0le CountY) Reason assigned for change:
20 My commission expires 3/28/09. 20
21 Page Line  Should read:
21 Reason assigned for change:
22 22 Page Line Should read:
23 Reason assigned for change:
23
24 24 Reporter: Kellene K. Feddersen, RPR, CSR, CCR
25 25
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1 Midwest Litigation Services I;

3432 West Truman Boulevard, Suite 207 H

2 Jefferson City, MO 5109 i

3 Phone (573)6356-7551 * Fax (573)636-9055 ;

4 uly 24, 2006 i

5 Robert Franson i

Missouri Public Service Commission i

& P.0. Box 360 i

200 Madison Street t

7 Jefferson City, MO 65102 [

8 InRe: USW Local 11-6 v. Laclede £

9 Dear Mr. Franson: H

10 Please find enclosed your copy of the deposition of Robert g

Leonberger taken on July §, 2006, in the above-referenced H

11 case. Also enclosed is the origing signature page and g

errata sheet. i

12 g

Please have the witness read your copy of the transeript, ’g

13 indicate any changes andfor corrections desired on the i

errata sheet and sign the signature page before a notary g

14 public, H

15 Please return the errata sheet and notarized signature B

page to Ms. Martin for filing prior to trial date. -%e

16 H

Thank you for your attention to this matter. §

17 g
Sincerely,

18

19 5

Kellene K. Feddersen, RPR, CSR, CCR g

20 i

Enclosure i

21 ¢c: Janine Martin §

Rick Zucker 4

22 Marc Posten i

23 <
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MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES
www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.DEPO(3376) Fax: 314.644.1334



